

## **MAJOR** Applications Planning Committee

## 6 December 2016

## Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1

	<b>Committee Members Present</b> : Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), Ian Edwards (Vice-Chairman), Henry Higgins, John Morgan, Brian Stead, Peter Curling (Labour Lead), Janet Duncan, John Oswell and Raymond Graham
	LBH Officers Present: Roisin Hogan (Planning Lawyer), Neil Fraser (Democratic Services Officer), James Rodger (Head of Planning and Enforcement), Neil McClellen (Major Applications Team Leader) and Syed Shah (Principle Highway Engineer)
96.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
	Apologies were received from Councillor Yarrow. Councillor Graham was in attendance as his substitute.
97.	<b>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING</b> (Agenda Item 2)
	None.
98.	TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)
	<b>Resolved</b> - That the minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a correct record.
99.	MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item 4)
	None.
100.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED INPUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)
	It was confirmed that all of the items on the agenda would be heard in public.
101.	THE OLD VINYL FACTORY - 59872/APP/2016/3571 (Agenda Item 6)
	Installation of public art (25m x 50m) for a temporary period of 18 months on the east facing wall of the Cabinet Building.
	Officers introduced the report, confirming that the proposed artwork was intended to

	improve the external appearance of the Cabinet Building prior to any renovation works at the site taking place. As the artwork was to be in place for 18 months, it could be reviewed and changed after this period. As the impact of the temporary wrap on the character and appearance of the building and locality was deemed to be acceptable, it was recommended that the application be approved.
	The Committee discussed the proposed image, with some Members highlighting the time period that the image was attempting to evoke, while others retaining concerns regarding the suitability of the image. Members suggested that it might prove difficult to change the image once it had been in place for 18 months.
	Members moved the officer's recommendation, which was seconded, and put to a vote. The application was approved, subject to the conditions as set out in the report, by a vote of 5 to 3.
	<b>Resolved -</b> That the application was approved, subject to conditions.
102.	MUSIC BOX, TOVF - 59872/APP/2016/1930 (Agenda Item 7)
	Reserved Matters Application regarding the appearance and landscaping for Phase 5 'The Music Box' (formerly the Record Stack) of The Old Vinyl Factory site, as required by Conditions 2 and 3 of planning permission ref. 59872/APP/2013/3775 dated 31/07/2014.
	Officers introduced the report and confirmed that this application had previously been presented to the Major Applications Planning Committee on the 24 August and 16 November 2016. At the most recent meeting, the Committee resolved to defer the application so that the image for the external face of the building could be reviewed. The applicant had since requested that the Committee approve the application, subject to a condition that a suitable image be approved by the Committee prior to use of the building. This would allow the applicant to enter into contractual arrangements and begin work on the construction of the development whilst an alternative image was sourced.
	Members were supportive of the officer's recommendation, though highlighted the importance of the final image being brought the Committee for approval prior to the building being opened for use. The recommendation was moved, seconded, and put to a vote where it was unanimously agreed, with one abstention.
	<b>Resolved -</b> That the application was approved, subject to conditions.
103.	RUISLIP BOWLS CLUB, MANOR FARM- 45220/APP/2016/3857 (Agenda Item 8)
	Proposed demolition of 2 no. sheds, single storey extension to existing pavilion, erection of detached building for storage / locker room use and associated external works
	Officers introduced the report, and highlighted the addendum, which confirmed that a request had been received from Historic England that a written scheme of investigation be submitted and approved prior to any demolition or development taking place. Officers suggested that the Council's Conservation Officer be tasked with contacting Historic England to ensure that they were justified in making such a request.
	Members discussed the importance of retaining the greenery already in situ at the site. It was suggested that the officer recommendation be amended to include a condition

	that the developer would not remove or disturb the pre-existing landscaping. This was moved, seconded, and put to a vote, where it was unanimously agreed.
	<b>Resolved -</b> That the application was approved, subject to conditions.
104	FORMER CONTRACTORS COMPOUND, HEATHROW - 67622/APP/2016/3198 (Agenda Item 9)
	Reserved Matters (Appearance, Landscaping, Layout, Scale, and Access) in compliance with condition 2 of application 67622/APP/2015/1851 (Variation of conditions 3, 4 and 9 of application 67622/APP/2013/2532 which granted consent on 30/7/14 for 'Part outline, part full planning application for a proposed hotel development of up to 660 bedrooms (approximately 30,000 sq.m) with ancillary cafe, bar and restaurant facilities, car parking, service access, courtyard space, landscaping and improved ground level pedestrian access including public realm improvements (all outline application) and a perimeter veil structure wrapping around the hotel buildings (in full application detail'. Variation requested for the removal of the veil and alterations to the glazing, amenity space and layout of the floors).
	Officers introduced the report and highlighted the addendum. The Committee was informed that the plans had been updated to reflect amendments required by the Landscaping Officer. The Landscaping Officer had raised no objections to these amendments, and it was recommended that the application be approved.
	The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded, put to a vote and unanimously approved.
	<b>Resolved</b> - That the application was approved.
105	BRIDGE HOUSE- 40050/APP/2016/852 (Agenda Item 10)
	Demolition of existing office building (Use Class B1(a) and multi-storey car park and redevelopment of the site to provide a new office (Use Class B1(a) building, associated multi-storey car park and ancillary cafe unit (Use Class A1/A3)
	Officers introduced the report, and confirmed that the application had been previously presented to the Committee on 16 November 2016, where it had been deferred so that additional information on the proposed highways mitigation measures could be provided.
	Officers had since agreed that the applicant would provide an increased obligation towards improvements to the local highway network form £150,000 to £500,00. This contribution would remain independent of other contributions, such as the £150,000 specified for public realm improvements and the £30,000 towards improvements to the canal/towpath.
	To address Member's concerns regarding the height of the roof barriers as raised at the previous meeting, these barriers were confirmed to be 1m high, which complied with building control requirements.
	with building control requirements.

	<b>Resolved</b> - That the application was approved.
106.	STOCKLEY PARK PHASE 3, IRON BRIDGE ROAD - 37977/APP/2016/2263 (Agenda Item 11)
	Land formation, landscaping, fencing and provision of ancillary footpaths and bridleways together with ancillary works to the offsite land parcels (Land Parcel A (10.67 hectares) - Land bounded by Stockley Road and B465 to the west, Goulds Green to the south and the residential area of Goulds Green to the east; Land Parcel B1 (0.52 hectares) - Land to the south of Park View Road and to the east of the residential area of Yiewsley; Land Parcel B2 (0.60 hectares) - Land to the east of Willow Avenue and Chestnut Avenue; Land Parcel C1 (1.19 hectares) - Land to the west of Bolingbroke Way and south of Dawley Road and bound by Stockley Park Golf Club to the west; Land Parcel C2 (0.53 hectares) - Land to the west of Bolingbroke Way and bound by Stockley Park Golf Club to the west (No works are sought to Land Parcel C2); Packet Boat Lane (2.83 hectares) - Land to the north of Packet Boat Lane, to the east of Old Mill Lane and Fray's River and to the east of Cowley Lake) associated with the approved development at Phase 3 Stockley Park (Planning permission ref. 37977/APP/2015/1004 dated 14/12/2014)
	Officers introduced the report, and confirmed that the development met the policy objectives and was not considered to raise any concerns regarding its impact on neighbours, highways, flooding, or air quality. It was therefore recommended that the application be approved.
	The Committee raised concerns regarding accessibility for people with disabilities. Officers confirmed that comments had been received from the Access Officer, who had made suggestions relating to the size of entry and exit points, the gradient of any footpaths, and the use of bonded gravel to ensure accessibility for wheelchair users, as outlined in Condition 5. The Committee suggested that the condition would need strengthening, and it was moved that the Committee delegate authority to the Chairman and the Labour Lead to approve the application, once plans were received that addressed Condition 5. This was seconded, put to the vote, and unanimously agreed.
	<b>Resolved -</b> That authority be delegated to the Chairman and Labour Lead to approve the application, once plans were received that addressed Condition 5.
	The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 6.30 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact on Neil Fraser on 01895 250692. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.